
FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 

FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 
 

Monday, January 25, 2016       7:00 PM 
 
 
MAYOR………………………………….STEVE MILLER    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…CHAD OBERSON 
COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….ADAM B. JONES    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MIKE SNYDER 
COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………CRAIG W. KELLER    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…BILL WOESTE 
COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….MARK WENDLING 
COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TIM ABBOTT    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for 
Citizen Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 
 
ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in 
city government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Agenda Modifications 
 
5. Executive Session Requests 
 
6. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
 

a) Duke Energy Gas Presentation 
b) Chamber of Commerce Update 

 
7. Public Hearing(s) 
 
8. Mayor/Council Reports 
 
9. Approval of Minutes 
 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of January 11, 2016 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS  
 

(A) PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman; Bill Woeste, Member 
 
(1) Resolution declaring necessity of repairing sidewalks (including aprons). 

 
• Resolution – Second Reading 

 
(2) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a three (3) year contract with T.R. Gear Landscaping 

for the Grounds, Entryways and Landscaping Program. 
 

• Ordinance – Second Reading 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
January 25, 2016 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 
 

(A) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Bill Woeste, Chairman; Adam Jones, Vice Chairman; Mike Snyder, Member 

 
 
(B) PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman; Bill Woeste, Member 
 
(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Prus Construction for the 2016 

Concrete Repair and Replacement Program. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(C) PARKS, RECREATION AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Craig Keller, Vice Chairman; Tim Abbott, Member 
 
(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a grant application and agreement with Ohio Public 

Works Commission/Clean Ohio Fund Green Space Conservation for the Seward Road-Morris Farm Project 
and declaring an emergency. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(D) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Tim Abbott, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman; Craig Keller, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance to establish salaries and hourly rates for certain salaried and hourly employees of the City of 
Fairfield, Ohio and to authorize and limit the numbers and types of certain employees, to repeal Ordinance 
No. 15-15 and all amendments thereto and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 107-15 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations for the 

expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 1, 2016, 
and ending December 31, 2016.” 

 
*Contractual Appropriations – $700,000 for 2016 Concrete Repair and Replacement Program. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(3) Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 107-15 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations for the 

expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 1, 2016, 
and ending December 31, 2016.” 
 
*Non-Contractual Appropriations – $100,000 for 2016 Grounds, Entry-ways & Landscaping Program 
(supplies for work by city employees); $100,000 for 2016 Annual Drainage Program (supplies for work by 
city employees); $42,000 for design for Pleasant Avenue Signal Reconstruction (Pleasant & Evalie and 
Pleasant & Hunter). 



Page 3  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
January 25, 2016 

 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
12. Meeting Schedule 

 
Monday, February 8 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, February 22 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, March 14 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
 

13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 
 

14. Adjournment 



 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

COUNCIL-MANAGER BRIEFING 
FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 
 

MONDAY, JANUARY 25, 2016 
6:00 P.M. 

 
 

 
1. Property Maintenance & Fair Housing Board – Tim Bachman  

 
 
 
 

 



MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL  

JANUARY 11, 2016 
 
Call to Order 
Mayor Steve Miller called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 7:00 PM at the Fairfield Municipal 
Building, 5350 Pleasant Avenue. 
 
Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
Councilmember Jones led in prayer and Boy Scout Troop 912 from Cincinnati Christian School led in 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call 
Mayor Miller called the roll of Council. Present members were Councilmember Adam Jones, 
Councilmember Craig Keller, Councilmember Debbie Pennington, Councilmember Tim Abbott, 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, Councilmember Mike Snyder, and Councilmember Bill Woeste. 
 
Agenda Modifications 
No agenda modifications. 
 
Executive Session Requests 
Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Pennington, moved for Executive Session to 
discuss pending and imminent litigation. Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
Chamber of Commerce Update 
Kert Radel, President of the Chamber of Commerce, announced the opening of the health center at 
Fairfield City Schools on January 14. The center will serve students and staff and allow students to 
receive care during the school day. He also reported that the leadership class conducted by the Chamber 
is going well and will they will hold a graduation ceremony in the spring at the Joe Nuxhall Miracle 
League Fields. 
 
Public Hearing(s) 
No public hearings. 
 
Mayor/Council Reports 
Councilmember Snyder reported that for the third year in a row, the Fairfield Wastewater Treatment 
Plant had zero discharge violations and was 100% compliant with all limits, terms and conditions in the 
NPDES discharge permit. He reported that the capacity of the plant is 10 million gallons of waste per day 
and currently treats an average of 5 million gallons per day. 
 
Councilmember Oberson reminded residents to move vehicles off of the street as much as possible 
during snow events to make it easier for city plows and salt trucks to treat the roads. He also announced 
that invoices for sidewalk and apron repair have been sent out. 
 
Councilmember Abbott stated that he is excited to be back on Council and work with the Finance 
Department. 
 



Councilmember Pennington announced that tickets are available for the annual Daddy & Daughter 
Dance and the Wine, Women & Song series will present the music of The Carpenters by Lisa Rock and 
her band on Friday, January 29. 
 
Councilmember Keller stated that he is very excited to join Council and work on Public Safety with Chief 
Dickey and Chief Bennett. 
 
Councilmember Jones welcomed Councilmembers Abbott and Keller to the group. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Regular Meeting Minutes of December 14, 2015 

• The Regular Meeting Minutes of December 14, 2015 were approved as written 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

PARKS, RECREATION AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Craig Keller, Vice Chairman; Tim Abbott, Member 

 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement with The Joe Nuxhall Miracle 
League Fields, Inc. for the operation of the Field of Dreams recreation complex on Groh Lane and a 
related easement modification agreement with A. Peter Groh and declaring an emergency. 
 
Councilmember Debbie Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Bill Woeste moved to amend the 
ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Debbie Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Bill 
Woeste moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 1-16. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

COMMUNITY & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE 
Adam Jones, Chairman; Bill Woeste, Vice Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Member 

 
Simple Motion: Motion to approve Council Committee Assignments dated January 1, 2016. 
 
Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Abbott, moved to approve the Council Committee 
Assignments dated January 1, 2016. Motion carried 7-0. SIMPLE MOTION 1-16. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman; Bill Woeste, Member 

 
Resolution declaring necessity of repairing sidewalks (including aprons). 

 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to read the following 
resolution by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended the annual resolution to declare necessity of 
repairing sidewalks. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson presented the first reading of this 
resolution. 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53786


 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a three (3) year contract with T.R. Gear 
Landscaping for the Grounds, Entryways and Landscaping Program. 

 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Bill Woeste moved to read the following 
ordinance by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended a contract with T.R. Gear Landscaping for the 
annual Grounds, Entryways and Landscaping Program. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson 
presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 
Tim Abbott, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman; Craig Keller, Member 

 
Councilmember Tim Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to read the 
following three (3) ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to amend Sections 181.03 and 181.05 of Ordinance No. 166-84, The Codified Ordinances of 
Fairfield, Ohio relative to the City of Fairfield Income Tax. 

 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended an ordinance to amend the Fairfield Income Tax 
code. There were a few minor errors in the state's amendment, as well as a provision for excluding stock 
options that was left out. This ordinance will correct all of those errors. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Tim Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Tim Abbott, 
seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 2-16. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 107-15 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations 
for the expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 
1, 2016, and ending December 31, 2016.” 

 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended a contractual appropriation for the first year of the 
Grounds, Entryways and Landscaping Program in the amount of $69,525. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Tim Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to suspend the 
rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Tim Abbott, 
seconded by Councilmember Craig Keller moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 3-16. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 107-15 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations 
for the expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 
1, 2016, and ending December 31, 2016.” 

 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53789
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53789
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53793
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53793
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53798
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53798
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53798
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53803
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53803
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53803


Background: City Manager Wendling recommended the following Non-Contractual Appropriations – 
$41,000 for purchase of three (3) thermal imaging cameras and fitness equipment through Assistance to 
Firefighters Grant (AFG) awarded to Fairfield Fire Department in 2015. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Tim Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Craig Keller moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Tim Abbott, 
seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 4-16. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Meeting Schedule 
Mayor Miller read the following meeting schedule: 
 

• Monday, January 25 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
• Monday, February 8 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
• Monday, February 22 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 

 
Executive Session of Council (if needed) 
The meeting adjourned to Executive Session at 7:15 PM. 
 
Adjournment 
The Regular Meeting adjourned at 7:45 PM. 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________ 
Clerk of Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mayor's Approval 
 
Date Approved:     

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=298&meta_id=53808

































































































	Regular Agenda for January 25, 2016
	Council-Manager Briefing of January 25, 2016
	Regular Meeting Minutes January 11, 2016
	Old Business
	PWC - Sidewalk Repair Resolution
	PWC - Landscaping Maintenance Contract

	New Business
	PWC - Concrete Repair & Replacement
	P&RC - Seward Road-Morris Farm Project/OPWC Grant
	F&BC - Wage & Salary Ordinance Amendment
	F&BC - Contractual Appropriations
	F&BC - Non-Contractual Appropriations


